
CITY OF HANOVER 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

MARCH 29, 2022  
 

 
Call to Order/Pledge of Allegiance: 
Mayor Chris Kauffman called the regular meeting of Tuesday, March 29, 2022, to order at 7:01 p.m. 
Present were Councilors MaryAnn Hallstein, Thomas Dierberger, and Mike Amery. Also present were 
City Administrator Jennifer Nash, City Engineer Justin Messner, City Engineer Jennifer Edison, City 
Attorney Jay Squires, Public Works Supervisor Jason Doboszenski and Accountant Jackie Heinz. Absent 
was Councilor Jim Zajicek. Guests present were Jodi Tappe, George Fantauzza and Fire Chief Dave 
Malewicki.  
 
Approval of Agenda: 
Kauffman requested to move the Fire Department Vacation Policy from Consent to item 7c. 
Kauffman requested to add River Inn as item7b. 
MOTION by Hallstein to approve the agenda as amended, seconded by Dierberger. Motion carried 
unanimously. 
 
Consent Agenda: 
MOTION by Hallstein to approve the consent agenda, seconded by Dierberger. 

a. Approve Minutes of March 15, 2022 City Council Work Session Meeting 
b. Approve Claims as Presented: 

 Claims  $     66,681.36 
 Payroll   $     10,336.28 
 P/R taxes & Exp $       4,219.81 
 Other Claims  $       2,694.39 
 Total Claims   $    83,931.84 

c. Resolution 03-29-22-21 – Declaring Property Surplus and Authorizing Sale 
d. Resolution 03-29-22-22 – Approving Amendment to Chpt 500 Fire Dept Policy 
e. Resolution 03-29-22-23 – Authorizing Lot Line Adjustment on 109th Ave 
f. Resolution 03-29-22-24 – Approving Temporary Liquor License 

Motion carried unanimously. 
 

Citizen’s Forum 
 Fire Chief Dave Malewicki 
Malewicki stated the Fire Department has been having problems with the pressure washer, it has been 
serviced and the vendor stated to not put any more money into it. Malewicki provided three different 
options to purchase a new pressure washer and is recommending the one for $4,495.00. Kauffman 
inquired gas or electric, Malewicki stated electric. Hallstein inquired if Kerosene would be needed, 
Malewicki stated yes, for the heater. 
 
MOTION by Hallstein to approve the purchase of the Alkota Pressure Washer for $4,495.00, seconded 
by Amery. Motion carried unanimously. 
 
Public Hearing 
None  



 
Unfinished Business 
 CSAH 19 Project Update from WSB 
Messner introduced Jennifer Edison as Nick Preisler’s replacement, Edison stated the corridor study was 
completed and identified a need for traffic control. Kauffman inquired if a flyer provided at the meeting 
could be added to the newsletter, Nash stated she would check. Messner suggested adding the content to 
the city website. Hallstein inquired about an information booth during the Hanover Harvest Festival. 
Messner stated yes, that would be the best time, WSB has a booth & canopy and final design would be 
starting sometime in the fall. Dierberger stated the city needs to be thorough about outreach to the public.  
 
Hallstein inquired about 15th Street connecting on the west side. Messner stated there are currently no 
connections, it is listed as a future improvement location and been discussed with Wright County. 
Hallstein stated people get ancy to get out onto 19 from 15th, with all the new homes going in in St. 
Michael and having access to 19 we need to encourage something at that intersection. Hallstein inquired 
what the business engagement will look like. Messner stated letters will be sent inviting businesses to 
discuss.  Hallstein inquired if there would be a cut for the Fire Department to make a left turn, Messner 
stated yes. Edison stated there would be a curb, but a fire truck would be able to drive over it. Messner 
stated feedback will be taken back to Wright County, we would get their approval and buy in. Dierberger 
inquired if the design was finished, Messner stated no, only a preliminary layout. Edison stated the design 
has been slightly modified since the preliminary layout. Messner stated Church Street was rerouted with 
the Bank. Dierberger inquired who will lead the presentation, Messner stated they will help kick it off, 
traffic and the public engagement teams will also be involved.  
 
New Business 

Resolution 03-29-22-25 – Approving Plans and Authorizing Advertisement for Quotes for 
2022 Pavement Improvement Project 

Edison stated coring was completed in October, estimated project cost including engineering and 
administration is $204,840, since the construction estimate is under $175,000, we are not required to do 
public bid, recommending sending plans to select contractors. Edison further stated bids would be due 
April 27, contract would be awarded on May 3 with construction to begin in May / June. Hallstein stated 
to be open with the time schedule but should be completed in three weeks. Messner stated they will start 
after school is out, roughly after June 10th. Edison stated once the job has started, the contractor is in 
until complete. Messner stated this will save on mobilization costs. Amery inquired how many 
companies the plans will be sent to, Messner stated a minimum of three, probably five or six. Amery 
inquired what happens at the city line near Ann Circle. Hallstein noted that is Greenfield and would be 
their jurisdiction.  
 
Doboszenski arrived at 7:35 pm. 
 
MOTION by Hallstein to approve Resolution 03-29-22-25, seconded by Dierberger. Motion carried 
unanimously. 
 

River Inn 
Jodi Tappe stated this has been an ongoing process and introduced architect George Fantauzza. 
Fantauzza stated they have been in discussions with the inspector, working to keep outdoor seating, 
talking with neighboring properties to lease during construction, rent outdoor bathrooms as well as 



possible fire suppression to the outdoor tents. Fantauzza stated they are currently heating but we are at 
the end of the season. Fantauzza further stated surveyors were on site today, with the temporary patio 
expiring April 25th, we have a concept, parking is priority, they have looked at numerous options and 
purchased the land and house to the NW of River Inn yesterday. This lot could be connected to the city 
lot. There will be conceptual options submitted next week for an April 19th meeting reviewal. Kauffman 
stated the property to the East would be a future conversation. Fantauzza stated some possible concepts 
include a land swap with the city downtown parking lot with the property to the East, they can get close 
to the parking requirements.  
 
Kauffman stated the land purchase is a huge positive and makes the possibilities better. Hallstein stated 
those pieces help give more ideas, the parking is something we have to look at and accommodate, looks 
forward to seeing more.  Kauffman stated you must do a couple of things quickly; a land swap may not 
work. Fantauzza stated they have looked at using the garage as an outdoor pavilion. Fantauzza stated 
one option includes removing existing garage, expanding and not touch the original building. Hallstein 
inquired if ADA requirement would need to be met. Nash stated we need to be careful with the review 
process and make sure the inspector is looking at everything. Squires stated the concept is coming and 
the best process is to develop options and the applicant will turn in items for staff review, then have staff 
give feedback. Fantauzza stated items will be turned into staff next week and they plan to continue 
discussions with Todd at Metro West regarding State Building Code. 
 
 Chapter 500 Fire Department Policy 
Kauffman inquired if 7 days equals one full week within the policy, Heinz stated yes. Kauffman stated 
he agrees and has no problems with the policy. Hallstein inquired if a request form would be completed 
by members, Malewicki stated yes, the form is ready to go. 
 
MOTION by Hallstein to approve the Amendment to Chapter 500 Fire Dept. Policy, seconded by 
Amery. Motion carried unanimously. 
 
Reports  
Doboszenski 

• Switched to LED exterior lights at City Hall and the Fire Station. 
• We are on the list for crack filling machine, product is already bought. 

Amery 
• Park Board will be having their egg hunt on Saturday, April 16th at 10:00 am.  
• Concert in the Park Series is set for June and August.  
• Shelter Rendering were received for the new shelter. 

 
Heinz 

• Hanover Harvest Festival planning is well underway. Planning is going smooth. 
• Audit prep is almost complete, the audit will be taking place the last week of April. 
• Inquired what the process will be for the administrator’s 6-month probationary review.  

Nash 
• Next meeting will have a large agenda, including local board of appeals.  
• Approached by Influence Church to do a food pick up in the parking lot of City Hall, there is no 

policy for use of the lot, this would take place on the 2nd Monday of the month at 4:00 pm, will 
last roughly 30 minutes, Council consensus – okay to use parking lot. 



• Developer looking Schendels Farm property will be submitting plans. 
• Escrow Payment was received for developer considering property on River Road just west of 

County 19. 
• Inquired about Council’s preferred code enforcement process questions regarding pending 

complaints. Kauffman suggested to tell them about clean-up day, send letters, and bring 
unresolved violations to Council for decision on further enforcement. 

Kauffman 
• Veolia manager is leaving, new manager will be coming in 

 
 
Adjournment 
MOTION by Hallstein to adjourn at 8:32 p.m., seconded by Dierberger. Motion carried unanimously. 
 
 
       APPROVED BY: 
 
       __________________________________ 
       Chris Kauffman, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
        
___________________________________ 
Jennifer Nash, City Administrator 


